Agenda Item #: 50-2

PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:	April 20, 2010		Consent Ordinance	[X] []	Regular Public Hearing
Department:	Office of Fi	nancia	i Managemen	ıt & Bı	udget

I. Executive Brief

Motion and Title: Staff recommends motion to adopt a Resolution authorizing the issuance of its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010 in the aggregate principal amount of not exceeding \$11,604,000 for the purpose of paying, together with other legally available funds of the County, the principal on the County's \$11,543,892.36 Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2007 on or before the maturity date thereof and paying costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds; providing for the application of the proceeds of the 2010 Bonds; determining certain details of the 2010 Bonds; providing for the sale of the 2010 Bonds to PNC Bank, National Association (PNC Bank); appointing the County as the initial paying agent and registrar for the 2010 Bonds and authorizing the proper officers of the County to do all other things necessary or advisable as to the sale and delivery of the 2010 Bonds; and providing an effective date.

Summary: In April, 2007, the Board authorized the issuance of the \$11.5 Million in bond anticipation notes (BANS) (R-2007-0584) which paid off the initial notes used to provide the financing for the costs of acquiring the convention center hotel site. The BANS are due on May 1, 2010. Staff is recommending that due to the uncertainty of the timing of the construction of a convention center hotel, the County seek permanent financing for the convention center hotel site. A Request for proposals was sent out on March 18 with responses received on April 8, 2010. PNC BANK won the bid with the lowest fixed taxable interest rate of 5.484% and the closing will take place by May 1, 2010. Ruden McClosky was appointed to serve as Bond Counsel. The cost of issuance will not exceed \$60,000. **Countywide** (PFK)

Background and Justification: On April 5, 2005, the Board authorized the issuance of Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project) in one or more series for the purpose of financing the cost of acquiring a site adjacent to the County's convention center and developing a convention center hotel thereon. The Board authorized the initial BANS (R-2005-0808) in the amount of \$10.5 Million to provide the financing for the cost of acquiring the convention center hotel site, paying preliminary architectural, engineering and legal fees associated with the convention center hotel site, and cost of issuance of the BANS. In April, 2007, these BANS were refinanced for a three year period ending May 1, 2010 with the expectation that the BANS would be paid off with revenue bonds issued for the construction of a convention center hotel by Ocean Properties. In FY 2009, the contracts with Ocean Properties were cancelled by the Board. Staff is now recommending that the County seek permanent financing for the convention center hotel site. The request for proposals was reviewed and approved by the County Financing Committee as was the subsequent winning bidder, PNC, Bank.

Attachments:

1. Bond Resol	ution 	
Recommended by: _	Elizalut a Bloesa Department Director	4/14/10 Date
Approved By:	County Administrator	Date

II. FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. F	A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:							
	Fiscal Years	<u>2010</u>	<u>2011</u>	2012	<u>2013</u>	<u>2014</u>		
Capi	fal							
-	enditures		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •					
-								
	rating Costs							
	Service Costs	<u> 150,000</u>	<u>1,420,782</u>	<u>1,110,131</u>	<u>1,109,330</u>	<u>1,108,485</u>		
_	rnal Revenues							
	ram Income (County	')						
In-Ki	nd Match (County)							
NET	FISCAL IMPACT			<u> </u>	 			
	ADDITIONAL FTE SITIONS (Cumulative	\		<u></u>				
. 00		,						
Budg	m Included In Curre get Account No.: ct <u>7202</u> Repo	Fund 203	7 Departm	_ No lent_ <i>8l0</i>	Unit7	1169		
В.	Recommended So	urces of Fu	nds/Summar	y of Fiscal	mpact:			
Debt	service is funded from	n non-ad valo	orem revenue	es.				
C.	Departmental Fisc	al Review: _	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			 .		
A.	OFMB Fiscal and/o		IEW COMME	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	onts:			
Λ.	OFIND FISCAL AND/C	or Contract i	Jev. and Coi	itroi Comin	ents.			
The I	FY 2010 interest paym	nents for the Ral 4/14	1410	are in the de				
B.	Legal Sufficiency:							
	Assistant County	4//0 Attorney	4/10					
C.	Other Department	Review:						
	Department	Director						
REVI	SED 9/03							

REVISED 9/03 ADM FORM 01 (THIS SUMMARY IS NOT TO BE USED AS A BASIS FOR PAYMENT.)

RM P.A. Draft: 4/14/10(2)

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

TAXABLE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS (CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL PROJECT) SERIES 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		<u>Page</u>
SECTION 1.	DEFINITIONS	3
SECTION 2.	PURPOSE OF THE 2010 BONDS; FORM OF 2010 BONDS; APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF THE 2010 BONDS	
SECTION 3.	DESCRIPTION OF THE 2010 BONDS	4
SECTION 4.	REDEMPTION PROVISIONS	5
SECTION 5.	SALE; COMMITMENT LETTER	5
SECTION 6.	PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR	6
SECTION 7.	INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED; AMENDMENTS	6
SECTION 8.	DISCLOSURE STATEMENT	6
SECTION 9.	FURTHER AUTHORIZATIONS	6
SECTION 10.	EFFECTIVE DATE	6
	EXHIBITS	
EXHIBIT A	FORM OF 2010 BONDS Exhi	bit A-1
EXHIBIT B	COMMITMENT LETTER Exhi	
EXHIBIT C	INVESTOR LETTERExhi	
EXHIBIT D	DISCLOSURE AND TRUTH IN RONDING STATEMENT Exhi	hit D_1

RESOLUTION R-2010-____

RESOLUTION OF THE OF COUNTY **BOARD** COMMISSIONERS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ITS **TAXABLE IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS** (CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL PROJECT), **SERIES** 2010 IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT EXCEEDING \$11,604,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING. **TOGETHER** WITH OTHER **LEGALLY** AVAILABLE FUNDS OF THE COUNTY, THE PRINCIPAL AND UNPAID INTEREST ACCRUED ON \$11,543,892.36 **TAXABLE PUBLIC** IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES (CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL PROJECT), SERIES 2007 ON OR BEFORE THE MATURITY DATE THEREOF AND PAYING COSTS OF ISSUANCE OF THE 2010 BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE APPLICATION OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE 2010 BONDS: DETERMINING CERTAIN DETAILS OF THE 2010 BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF THE 2010 BONDS TO PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION; APPOINTING THE COUNTY AS THE INITIAL PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR FOR THE 2010 BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE **PROPER** OFFICERS OF THE COUNTY TO DO ALL OTHER THINGS DEEMED NECESSARY OR ADVISABLE AS TO THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE 2010 BONDS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on April 5, 2005, the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County Commission"), as the governing body of Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County"), adopted Resolution R-2005-0702 (the "Bond Resolution") authorizing the issuance of its Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project) (the "Bonds") in one or more Series (as defined in the Bond Resolution) for the purpose of financing of the Project (as defined in the Bond Resolution) and the issuance of its Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center Hotel Project) in one or more Series in anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds of one or more Series; and

WHEREAS, the Project includes the acquisition of the Convention Center Hotel Site (as defined in the Bond Resolution); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Resolution, as supplemented by Resolution R-2005-0808 (the "Original Notes Resolution"), the County issued its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center

Hotel Project), Series 2005 in the aggregate principal amount of \$10,500,000 (the "Original Notes"), for the purpose of financing the Cost of the acquisition of the Convention Center Hotel Site, paying preliminary architectural, engineering and legal fees associated with the Project, including the acquisition of the Convention Center Hotel Site, and paying the costs of issuance of the Original Notes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Resolution, as supplemented by Resolution R-2007-0584 (the "2007 Notes Resolution"), the County subsequently issued its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2007 in the aggregate principal amount of \$11,543,892.36 (the "2007 Notes") for the purpose of paying the Original Notes at their maturity and paying costs of issuance of the 2007 Notes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2007 Notes Resolution, the 2007 Notes were sold to Wachovia Bank, National Association (the "Bank") on April 30, 2007; and

WHEREAS, the 2007 Notes provide for the entire original principal amount of such 2007 Notes and unpaid interest accrued thereon to become due and payable on May 1, 2010 (the "2007 Notes Maturity Date"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2007 Notes Resolution, the County authorized the issuance of a Series of Bonds pursuant to the Bond Resolution in an aggregate principal amount at least sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2007 Notes when due, or upon the earlier redemption thereof, and for such other purposes as specified in subsequent proceedings of the County; and

WHEREAS, the County hereby determines that, pursuant to the authorization of the Bond Resolution and the 2007 Notes Resolution, it is in its best interests to issue its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010 (the "2010 Bonds") in an aggregate principal amount of not exceeding \$11,604,000 to provide for the payment, together with other legally available funds of the County, of the principal of unpaid interest accrued on the 2007 Notes on or before the 2007 Notes Maturity Date and to pay costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Bond Resolution provides that any Series of Bonds issued thereunder must meet the anti-dilution test set forth in Article III, Section 10(e) of the Bond Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the 2010 Bonds will meet the tests provided under said Article III, Section 10(e) of the Bond Resolution; and

WHEREAS, PNC Bank, National Association (the "Bank") has submitted to the County a proposal in connection with the 2010 Bonds, which proposal is in the form of a commitment letter (the "Commitment Letter") attached hereto as an exhibit; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, an authorized officer of the Bank, on behalf of the Bank, has delivered to the County a disclosure statement and truth-in-bonding statement in the form attached hereto as an exhibit; and

WHEREAS, based on the findings set forth in Section 6 hereof, the County Commission determines that it would be in the best interest of the County that 2010 Bonds be sold to the Bank; and

WHEREAS, based on the advice of the County's financial advisor, the County hereby determines it is in the best interest of the County to issue the 2010 Bonds for the purposes set forth herein, to accept the Commitment Letter and to award 2010 Bonds to the Bank.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. All capitalized terms used in this Resolution and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Bond Resolution, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. This Resolution is supplemental to the Bond Resolution.

SECTION 2. PURPOSE OF THE 2010 BONDS; FORM OF 2010 BONDS; APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF THE 2010 BONDS. The County hereby authorizes and determines at this time to issue not exceeding \$11,604,000 in aggregate principal amount of the 2010 Bonds as Taxable Bonds to pay, together with other legally available funds of the County, the outstanding principal of and unpaid and accrued interest on the 2007 Notes on or before the 2007 Notes Maturity Date and to pay costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds. The final principal amount of the 2010 Bonds, which shall not exceed the maximum principal amount authorized herein, shall be determined based on the actual date of delivery of the 2010 Bonds, and shall be equal to the amount needed to pay (i) the outstanding principal amount of the 2007 Notes on the delivery date of the 2010 Bonds; and (ii) costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds. Unpaid interest accrued on the 2007 Notes through the date of delivery of the 2010 Bonds shall be paid from legally available funds of the County. The application of the proceeds of the 2010 Bonds and other legally available funds of the County shall be set forth in a certificate of the Chair of the County Commission (or, in his absence, the Vice Chair or, in her absence, any other member of the County Commission) and the Debt Manager of the County delivered in connection with the closing of the 2010 Bonds (the "Closing Certificate"). A portion of the proceeds of the 2010 Bonds shall be deposited to a separate account in the Cost of Issuance Fund established pursuant to the Bond Resolution, which account is hereby created and designated as the "2010 Bonds Cost of Issuance Account," and the balance of such proceeds shall be applied on the date of issuance and delivery of the 2010 Bonds to pay all principal of due on the 2007 Notes, in full satisfaction thereof, all as shall be set forth in the Closing Certificate. Proceeds of the 2010 Bonds on deposit in the 2010 Bonds Cost of Issuance Account, together with investment earnings thereon, shall be applied as provided in the Bond Resolution.

The text of the 2010 Bonds shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto. The Chair of the County Commission or, in his absence, the Vice Chair or, in her absence, any other member of the County Commission, is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk to attest, the 2010 Bonds, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A with such modifications, insertions and deletions as may be approved, in consultation with the County Administrator, by the Chair of the County Commission or, in his absence, the Vice Chair or, in her absence, any other member of the County Commission, and to deliver the 2010 Bonds to the Bank.

The 2010 Bonds shall not be secured by the Debt Service Reserve Account of the Sinking Fund.

SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE 2010 BONDS. The 2010 Bonds shall be dated their date of delivery and shall mature on November 1, 2024 (the "Maturity Date"). The 2010 Bonds shall bear interest from their date of delivery at a rate per annum equal to 5.484%. In the event any payment of the principal of and interest on the 2010 Bonds is not paid when due, the unpaid amounts shall bear interest, from and after five (5) days after the due date, at a default rate equal to 3% over the Bank's "Base Rate" (as hereinafter defined). The term "Base Rate" shall mean the highest of (i) the Prime Rate (as hereinafter defined), (ii) the sum of the Federal Funds Open Rate (as hereinafter defined) plus fifty (50) basis points (0.50%), and (iii) the sum of the Daily LIBOR Rate (as hereinafter defined) plus one hundred (100) basis points (1.0%), so long as a Daily LIBOR Rate is offered, ascertainable and not unlawful. For purposes of the foregoing, the following terms be defined as follows:

"Daily LIBOR Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum determined by the Bank by dividing (x) the Published Rate (as hereinafter defined) by (y) a number equal to 1.00 minus the LIBOR Reserve Percentage (as hereinafter defined).

"Federal Funds Open Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum (based on a year of 360 days and actual days elapsed) which is the daily federal funds open rate as quoted by ICAP North America, Inc. (or any successor) as set forth on the Bloomberg Screen BTMM for that day opposite the caption "OPEN" (or on such other substitute Bloomberg Screen that displays such rate), or as set forth on such other recognized electronic source used for the purpose of displaying such rate as selected by the Bank (an "Alternate Source") (or if such rate for such day does not appear on the Bloomberg Screen BTMM (or any substitute screen) or on any Alternate Source, or if there shall at any time, for any reason, no longer exist a Bloomberg Screen BTMM (or any substitute screen) or any Alternate Source, a comparable replacement rate determined by the Bank at such time (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error); provided however, that if such day is not a Business Day, the

Federal Funds Open Rate for such day shall be the "open" rate on the immediately preceding Business Day. The rate of interest charged shall be adjusted as of each Business Day based on changes in the Federal Funds Open Rate without notice to the Borrower.

"LIBOR Reserve Percentage"	' shall mean	
----------------------------	--------------	--

"Prime Rate" shall mean the rate publicly announced by the Bank from time to time as its prime rate. The Prime Rate is determined from time to time by the Bank as a means of pricing some loans to its borrowers. The Prime Rate is not tied to any external rate of interest or index, and does not necessarily reflect the lowest rate of interest actually charged by the Bank to any particular class or category of customers.

Interest on the outstanding principal balance of the 2010 Bonds shall be payable on each May 1 and November 1 until the Maturity Date or earlier redemption thereof, commencing November 1, 2010. Principal on the 2010 Bonds shall be payable annually on each November 1 until the Maturity Date or earlier redemption thereof, commencing November 1, 2010. The 2010 Bonds shall be issued in Authorized Denominations equal to the Outstanding principal amounts of the 2010 Bonds from time to time.

SECTION 4. REDEMPTION PROVISIONS. The 2010 Bonds shall be redeemable in whole or in part prior to the Maturity Date, at any time on or after November 1, 2019, without penalty or premium, at a redemption price equal to the par amount of the 2010 Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued to the redemption date. Notice of such redemption shall be sent to the Bank at least ten (10) Business Days prior to the date of redemption. Notwithstanding any provision of the Bond Resolution to the contrary, no other notice of redemption of the 2010 Bonds is required.

SECTION 5. SALE; COMMITMENT LETTER. The County Commission hereby finds, pursuant to Section 218.385(1)(a) that based on present market conditions, the volatility of interest rates and the recommendation of the County's financial advisor, after reviewing proposals submitted pursuant to a bid process, it would be in the best interest of the County that the 2010 Bonds be sold to the Bank. The Commitment Letter submitted to this meeting and attached hereto as Exhibit B is hereby approved and accepted. The 2010 Bonds are hereby sold to the Bank at a purchase price equal to the initial principal amount of the 2010 Bonds as determined in accordance herewith. The Chair of the County Commission or, in his absence, the Vice Chair or, in her absence, any other member of the County Commission, is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk to attest, the Commitment Letter and to deliver the 2010 Bonds to the Bank and to obtain the 2007 Notes from the Bank, marked cancelled. As a condition to the delivery

of the 2010 Bonds to the Bank, the Bank shall deliver to the County an investor letter substantially in the form of Exhibit C hereto.

SECTION 6. PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR. Notwithstanding any provision of the Bond Resolution to the contrary, the County is hereby appointed as Paying Agent and Registrar for the 2010 Bonds.

SECTION 7. INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED; AMENDMENTS. While the 2010 Bonds are Outstanding and the Bank is the Owner thereof: (a) the County shall furnish to the Bank the same documents as it is required to furnish to a Credit Facility Issuer pursuant to Article III, Section 10 (h) of the Bond Resolution in the same time frame as required by that section, and (b) the County shall not amend any provision of the Bond Resolution or this Resolution affecting the 2010 Bonds without the prior written consent of the Bank.

SECTION 8. DISCLOSURE STATEMENT. The County does hereby find that the Bank has submitted a disclosure statement and truth-in-bonding statement pursuant to Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

SECTION 9. FURTHER AUTHORIZATIONS. The Chair and Vice Chair of the County Commission, any other member of the Board, the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk, the County Administrator and the Debt Manager, and any other authorized official of the County, be, and each of them is hereby, authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all documents and instruments, and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated by the Bond Resolution and this Resolution.

SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

	The	foreg	oing	Reso	lution	was	0	ffered	b	ру	Comm	nissio	ner
		who	moved	its	adopti	on.	The	motic	on v	was	secon	ided	by
Commission	er			, and	d upon	being	put	to a	vote	e, the	vote	was	as
follows:													
this 20th day	Commi Commi Commi Commi Commi	issione issione issione issione issione	er Burt A er Karen er Jeff K er Shelle er Steve er Jess I er Priscil	T. Moons by Va n L. A R. Sa la A.	larcus, na Abrams ntamar Taylor	Vice Cl		on du	- - - - -	assed	i and	adop	ted
					PALM BOARD								TS
				9	SHARO	NR.B	OCK	, CLE	RK 8	& COI	MPTR	OLLE	ĒR
				E	By:			Deput	y Cle	erk	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		_
APPROVED LEGAL SUFF	AS TO I	FORM Y	AND										
By:	stant O-		44		_								
ASSIS	tant Co	unty A	ιτιorney										

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF 2010 BONDS

THIS OBLIGATION MAY BE TRANSFERRED ONLY WITH THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE COUNTY AS DESCRIBED HEREIN.

No. R-1

\$11,604,000

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF FLORIDA PALM BEACH COUNTY TAXABLE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS (CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL PROJECT), SERIES 2010

Interest Rate 5.484%

Maturity Date
November 1, 2024

Dated Date April 28, 2010

Registered Owner: PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

Principal Amount: ELEVEN MILLION SIX HUNDRED AND FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$11,604,000)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County"), for value received, hereby promises to pay, solely from the Pledged Revenues (hereinafter defined) to the Registered Owner or registered assigns on the Maturity Date specified above (or earlier redemption date as herein provided) the Principal Amount stated hereon, and to pay, solely from the Pledged Revenues, interest on the Principal Amount from the date hereof to the Maturity Date or earlier redemption date at the Interest Rate per annum set forth above, subject to adjustment as herein provided. The Principal Amount and accrued interest thereon is payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America, which, on the date of payment thereof, shall be legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Resolution (hereinafter defined). Promptly following the payment of the principal of this Bond, the Registered Owner shall provide the County with evidence of the cancellation hereof. The County is serving as the initial Paying Agent and Registrar for this Bond. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Resolution.

Interest on this Bond shall be calculated on the basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve 30 day months and shall be payable on each November 1 and

May 1 (each, an "Interest Payment Date") through the Maturity Date or earlier redemption date hereof, commencing on November 1, 2010. Principal on this Bond shall be payable annually, commencing November 1, 2010, in accordance with the amortization schedule attached hereto.

In the event any payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond is not paid when due, the unpaid amounts shall bear interest, from and after five (5) days after the due date, at a default rate equal to 3% over the initial Registered Owner's "Base Rate" (as hereinafter defined). The term "Base Rate" shall mean the highest of (i) the Prime Rate (as hereinafter defined), (ii) the sum of the Federal Funds Open Rate (as hereinafter defined) plus fifty (50) basis points (0.50%), and (iii) the sum of the Daily LIBOR Rate (as hereinafter defined) plus one hundred (100) basis points (1.0%), so long as a Daily LIBOR Rate is offered, ascertainable and not unlawful. For purposes of the foregoing, the following terms be defined as follows:

"Daily LIBOR Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum determined by the Bank by dividing (x) the Published Rate (as hereinafter defined) by (y) a number equal to 1.00 minus the LIBOR Reserve Percentage (as hereinafter defined).

"Federal Funds Open Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum (based on a year of 360 days and actual days elapsed) which is the daily federal funds open rate as quoted by ICAP North America, Inc. (or any successor) as set forth on the Bloomberg Screen BTMM for that day opposite the caption "OPEN" (or on such other substitute Bloomberg Screen that displays such rate), or as set forth on such other recognized electronic source used for the purpose of displaying such rate as selected by the Bank (an "Alternate Source") (or if such rate for such day does not appear on the Bloomberg Screen BTMM (or any substitute screen) or on any Alternate Source, or if there shall at any time, for any reason, no longer exist a Bloomberg Screen BTMM (or any substitute screen) or any Alternate Source, a comparable replacement rate determined by the Bank at such time (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error); provided however, that if such day is not a Business Day, the Federal Funds Open Rate for such day shall be the "open" rate on the immediately preceding Business Day. The rate of interest charged shall be adjusted as of each Business Day based on changes in the Federal Funds Open Rate without notice to the Borrower.

"LIBOR Reserve Percentage'	' shall mean
----------------------------	--------------

"Prime Rate" shall mean the rate publicly announced by the Bank from time to time as its prime rate. The Prime Rate is determined from time to time by the Bank as a means of pricing some loans to its borrowers. The Prime Rate is not tied to any external rate of interest or index, and does not necessarily reflect the lowest rate of interest actually charged by the Bank to any particular class or category of customers.

"Published	Rate"	shall	mean	

This Bond shall be redeemable in whole or in part prior to the Maturity Date, at any time on or after November 1, 2019, without penalty or premium, at a redemption price equal to the par amount of the 2010 Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued to the redemption date, upon at least ten Business Days prior written notice to the Registered Owner of this Bond.

This Bond represents all of an authorized issue of bonds of the County designated as its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010 issued under the authority of and in full compliance with the Constitution, the County Charter, as amended and supplemented, and laws of the State of Florida, including particularly Chapters 125 and 166, Florida Statutes and other applicable provisions of law, and a resolution duly adopted by the Board on April 5, 2005, as supplemented by a resolution duly adopted by the Board on April 20, 2010 (collectively, the "Resolution"), is issued for the purposes set forth in the Resolution, and is subject to all the terms and conditions of the Resolution. This Bond is issued as a Taxable Bond under the Resolution and is issuable only as a registered bond without coupons in Authorized Denominations equal to the Outstanding principal amount of this Bond from time to time.

This Bond is a special obligation of the County and is payable solely in the manner and to the extent set forth in the Resolution. The County has pledged the Pledged Revenues (as defined below) for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond in accordance with the terms and the provisions of the Resolution. This Bond shall not be or constitute a general obligation of the County within the meaning of the Constitution of the State of Florida but shall be payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and a pledge of the Pledged Revenues, in the manner and to the extent provided in the Resolution. No Owner shall ever have the right to compel the exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of the County or taxation in any form on any real or personal property to pay this Bond or the interest thereon, nor shall any Owner be entitled to payment of such principal or interest from any other funds of the County other than as provided in the Resolution. Furthermore, no Owner shall ever have a lien on the Project or any other real or personal property of the County, except for the Pledged Revenues, in the manner and to the extent provided in the Resolution.

Until the Bonds (as defined in the Resolution to mean all Series of Bonds and bond anticipation notes issued to finance or refinance the Project) are paid or deemed paid pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution, the County covenants to appropriate in its annual budget in each Fiscal Year, by amendment if necessary, Non-Ad Valorem Revenues in amounts sufficient to pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, as the same become due (whether by redemption, at maturity or otherwise), and, if applicable, to restore any deficiency in the

Debt Service Reserve Account created and established under the Resolution for the Bonds. This Bond is not secured by the Debt Service Reserve Account.

The Resolution provides that notwithstanding the foregoing covenant of the County, the County does not covenant to maintain any services or programs, now provided or maintained by the County, which generate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues other than such services or programs which are essential public purposes affecting the health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the County. The Resolution further provides that to the extent that the County is in compliance with the foregoing covenant and Section 10(e) of Article III of the Resolution, the obligations of the County contained in the Resolution shall not be construed as a limitation on the ability of the County to pledge or covenant with respect to the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues for other indebtedness or other legally permissible purposes.

Such covenant to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues is not a pledge by the County of such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues and is subject in all respects to the payment of obligations secured by a pledge of such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues heretofore or hereinafter entered into, including the payment of debt service on bonds or other obligations. Such covenant to budget and appropriate is subject to the provisions of Section 129.07, Florida Statutes, which makes it unlawful for the County to expend moneys not appropriated and in excess of the County's current budgeted revenues. Such covenant does not require the County to levy and collect any particular source of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues nor to maintain or increase any regulatory fees or user charges with respect to any particular source of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues. Such covenant does not give the Paying Agent a prior claim on such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues as opposed to claims of general creditors of the County until such time as a deposit of such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues is made into the Sinking Fund or other fund created under the Resolution for the Bonds.

"Pledged Revenues" means: (i) moneys budgeted and appropriated by the County, and deposited into the Sinking Fund or any other Fund established under the Resolution, from Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (until deposited into the Sinking fund in the manner and at the time specified in the Resolution such moneys do not constitute Pledged Revenues); (ii) any proceeds of Bonds originally deposited with the County and all moneys deposited and held from time to time by the County in the funds (other than the Rebate Fund and Cost of Issuance Fund) and accounts established pursuant to the Resolution; (iii) investment income received by the County in the funds (other than the Rebate Fund and Cost of Issuance Fund) and accounts established pursuant to the Resolution; and (iv) any other moneys received by the Paying Agent in connection with repayment of the Bonds.

"Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means legally available revenues of the County derived from any source whatever other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, which are legally available for payment by the County of Debt Service on the Bonds, including, after the payment from the sources of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues pledged thereto of the principal of and interest on any obligations of the

County hereafter issued which have a prior pledge on any source of the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues; provided however that for the purpose of the anti-dilution test set forth in of the Resolution, "Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means all legally available revenues of the County derived from any source whatever other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property which are legally available for payment by the County of Non-Self-Supporting Debt.

The original Registered Owner, and each successive Registered Owner of this Bond shall be conclusively deemed to have agreed and consented to the terms and conditions of the Resolution and this Bond, including the following:

- (1) The County, as Registrar, shall maintain the books of the County for the registration of Bonds as provided in the Resolution. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Resolution, the initial Registered Owner may not participate the obligations evidenced hereby. Further, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Resolution, this Bond may only be transferred or assigned in whole, but not in part, subject to the prior written consent of the County, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, provided that the proposed transferee or assignee delivers to the County an investment certificate in form and substance identical to that delivered to the County by the initial Registered Owner hereof.
- (2) The County, directly and in its capacity as Paying Agent and Registrar, shall deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond shall be registered upon the books kept by the Registrar as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal of and interest on such Bond as the same becomes due, and for all other purposes. All such payments so made to any such Registered Owner or upon his order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and the County, directly and in its capacity as Paying Agent and Registrar, shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.
- (3) If less than all of this Bond is redeemed or defeased, the County shall execute and the County, as Registrar, shall authenticate and deliver, upon the surrender of this Bond, without charge to the Bondholder, for the unpaid balance of the principal amount of this Bond so surrendered, a registered Bond in the appropriate Authorized Denomination and interest rate.

THE COUNTY, BY EXECUTION HEREOF, AND THE REGISTERED OWNER, BY ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, MUTUALLY AND WILLINGLY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY AND ALL CLAIMS MADE BETWEEN THEM WHETHER NOW EXISTING OR ARISING IN THE FUTURE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, AND INTERVENOR'S CLAIMS WHETHER ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THE NEGOTIATION, EXECUTION, AND PERFORMANCE OF THE TRANSACTIONS TO WHICH THIS BOND RELATES.

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, to happen, and to the performed, precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form and time as required by the laws and Constitution of the State of Florida applicable thereto, and that the issuance of this Bond is in full compliance with all constitutional or statutory limitations or provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Palm Beach County, Florida, has issued this Bond and has caused the same to be executed by the manual signature of its Chair and the official seal of the County to be affixed hereto or lithographed or imprinted or reproduced hereon, and attested by the manual signature of the Chief Deputy Clerk, all as of the Dated Date.

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:						
•	Chair	of	the	Board	of	County
	Comm	issic	ners			

ATTEST:

Chief Deputy Clerk of the Circuit Court and Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County, Florida

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT B

COMMITMENT LETTER

EXHIBIT C

INVESTOR LETTER

Board of County Commissioners Palm Beach County, Florida West Palm Beach, Florida

Re: \$11,604,000 Palm Beach County, Florida, Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010 (the "2010 Bonds")

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter is being provided in connection with the purchase and exchange of the above-referenced 2010 Bonds which were delivered to us by Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County") as of the date hereof.

- 1. We are engaged in the business of investing in securities similar to the 2010 Bonds or the business of entering into loan transactions evidenced by securities similar to the 2010 Bonds.
- 2. We are purchasing the 2010 Bonds from the County for our own account (or those of our banking affiliates) for investment purposes and not for resale; provided, however, that the 2010 Bonds may be transferred or assigned in whole, but not in part, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the 2010 Bonds.
- 3. We are an "accredited investor" as that term is defined in Regulation D as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "1933 Act"), and we have sufficiently knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, including the purchase and ownership of taxable and tax-exempt obligations, to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of our investment in the 2010 Bonds.
- 4. We are able to bear the economic risk of our investment in the 2010 Bonds.
- 5. We acknowledge that the 2010 Bonds do not represent a general obligation of the County, the State of Florida or any political subdivision thereof and are not payable from taxes or any moneys provided by or to the County, other than those described in the 2010 Bonds, and we further acknowledge that no covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement contained in any documents related to the issuance of the 2010

Bonds is or shall be deemed to be a covenant, agreement or obligation of any present or future board member, officer or employee of the County in his or her individual capacity.

- 6. We acknowledge and agree that the 2010 Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the 1933 Act or the securities or Blue Sky laws of any state and are not listed on any stock or securities exchange.
- 7. We understand that no offering, statement, prospectus, offering circular, official statement or other disclosure document containing material information with respect to the County and the 2010 Bonds is being or has been prepared, and that, with due diligence, we have made our own inquiry and analysis with respect to the County, the 2010 Bonds and the security therefor.
- 8. We have received all financial and other information regarding the 2010 Bonds that we have requested and which we consider relevant or necessary to make an informed decision to invest in the 2010 Bonds. We have made our own inquiry into the creditworthiness of the 2010 Bonds and the County, we have received all the information that we have requested from the County or any agents or representatives thereof, and we have been afforded a reasonable opportunity to ask questions about the terms and conditions of the offering of the 2010 Bonds and the security therefor, and the County, and have received, to the best of our knowledge, complete and satisfactory answers to all such questions.

Dated as of the 28th day of April, 2010.

Yours very truly,								
PNC Purch		National	Association,	as				
Ву: _								
Title:	Vice Pr	esident						

EXHIBIT D

DISCLOSURE AND TRUTH IN BONDING STATEMENT

Board of County Commissioners Palm Beach County, Florida West Palm Beach, Florida

Re: \$11,604,000 Palm Beach County, Florida, Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In connection with the proposed issuance of the above-captioned bonds (the "2010 Bonds"), PNC Bank, National Association (the "Bank") has agreed to purchase the 2010 Bonds.

The purpose of this letter is to furnish pursuant to the provisions of Sections 218.385(2) and (6), Florida Statutes, as amended, certain information in respect to the arrangement contemplated for the placement and sale of the 2010 Bonds as follows:

(a) An itemized list setting forth the nature and estimated amounts of expenses to be incurred by the Bank in connection with the issuance of the 2010 Bonds is set forth below:

Bryant Miller & Olive P.A., Bank's Counsel: \$7,500

None of such fees and expenses are being charged to the County as part of the underwriting spread, if any, set forth in paragraph (c) below.

- (b) No "finder" as that term is defined in Section 218.386, Florida Statutes, as amended, has entered into an understanding with the Bank, or to the knowledge of the Bank, with the County, for any paid or promised compensation or valuable consideration, directly or indirectly, expressly or implied, to act solely as an intermediary between the County and the Bank or to exercise or attempt to exercise any influence to effect any transaction in the purchase of the 2010 Bonds.
 - (c) The underwriting spread to be paid by the County will be:

\$0.00

- (d) No other fee, bonus or other compensation is estimated to be paid by the Bank in connection with the issuance of the 2010 Bonds to any person not regularly employed or retained by the Bank (including any "finder," as defined in Section 281.386(1)(a), Florida Statutes, as amended), except as specifically enumerated as expenses to be incurred and paid by the Bank as set forth in paragraph (a) above.
- (e) Truth-in-Bonding Statement The County is proposing to issue the 2010 Bonds to pay, together with other legally available funds of the County, the principal of and accrued and unpaid interest due on the County's outstanding \$11,543,892.36 Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2007 (the "2007 Notes") and pay costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds. The 2010 Bonds are expected to be repaid at or prior to maturity on November 1, 2024 (the "Maturity Date"). The total interest paid over the life of the 2010 Bonds is estimated to be \$5,272,936.94.

The source of repayment or security for the 2010 Bonds is limited solely to the Pledged Revenues as such term is defined in the 2010 Bonds. Assuming a par amount of \$11,604,000, the authorization of this debt or obligation will result in approximately \$1,124,736 of Pledged Revenues not being available to the County to finance other projects of the County each year for the approximately fifteen-year period from the date of issuance of the 2010 Bonds to the Maturity Date.

(f) The name and address of the Bank is set forth below:

PNC Bank, National Association 1600 Market Street, 22nd Floor Philadelphia, PA 19103

We understand that the County does not require any further disclosure from the Bank, pursuant to Section 218.385(6), Florida Statutes, as amended.

Dated as of this 20th day of April, 2010.

	•	National	Association,	as
Purch	aser			

Yours very truly,

By: _		
Title:	Vice President	

RM P.A. Draft: 4/14/10(2)

TAXABLE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS (CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL PROJECT)

SERIES 2010

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u> </u>	Page
SECTION 1.	DEFINITIONS	3
SECTION 2.	PURPOSE OF THE 2010 BONDS; FORM OF 2010 BONDS; APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF THE 2010 BONDS	3
SECTION 3.	DESCRIPTION OF THE 2010 BONDS	4
SECTION 4.	REDEMPTION PROVISIONS	5
SECTION 5.	SALE; COMMITMENT LETTER	5
SECTION 6.	PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR	6
SECTION 7.	INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED; AMENDMENTS	6
SECTION 8.	DISCLOSURE STATEMENT	6
SECTION 9.	FURTHER AUTHORIZATIONS	6
SECTION 10.	EFFECTIVE DATE	6
	EXHIBITS	
EXHIBIT A EXHIBIT B EXHIBIT C EXHIBIT D	FORM OF 2010 BONDS Exhibit COMMITMENT LETTER Exhibit INVESTOR LETTER Exhibit DISCLOSURE AND TRUTH IN BONDING STATEMENT . Exhibit	t B-1 t C-1

RESOLUTION R-2010-

RESOLUTION OF THE **BOARD** OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ITS **TAXABLE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT** REVENUE **BONDS** (CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL PROJECT), SERIES 2010 IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT **EXCEEDING** \$11,604,000 FOR THE PURPOSE **TOGETHER** PAYING, **WITH OTHER LEGALLY** AVAILABLE FUNDS OF THE COUNTY, THE PRINCIPAL AND UNPAID INTEREST ACCRUED ON COUNTY'S \$11,543,892.36 **TAXABLE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES** (CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL PROJECT), SERIES 2007 ON OR BEFORE THE MATURITY DATE THEREOF AND PAYING COSTS OF ISSUANCE OF THE 2010 BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE APPLICATION OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE 2010 BONDS; DETERMINING CERTAIN DETAILS OF THE 2010 BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF THE 2010 BONDS TO PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION; APPOINTING THE COUNTY AS THE INITIAL PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR FOR THE 2010 BONDS; **AUTHORIZING** THE OFFICERS OF THE COUNTY TO DO ALL OTHER THINGS DEEMED NECESSARY OR ADVISABLE AS TO THE SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE 2010 BONDS: AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on April 5, 2005, the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County Commission"), as the governing body of Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County"), adopted Resolution R-2005-0702 (the "Bond Resolution") authorizing the issuance of its Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project) (the "Bonds") in one or more Series (as defined in the Bond Resolution) for the purpose of financing of the Project (as defined in the Bond Resolution) and the issuance of its Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center Hotel Project) in one or more Series in anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds of one or more Series; and

WHEREAS, the Project includes the acquisition of the Convention Center Hotel Site (as defined in the Bond Resolution); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Resolution, as supplemented by Resolution R-2005-0808 (the "Original Notes Resolution"), the County issued its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center

Hotel Project), Series 2005 in the aggregate principal amount of \$10,500,000 (the "Original Notes"), for the purpose of financing the Cost of the acquisition of the Convention Center Hotel Site, paying preliminary architectural, engineering and legal fees associated with the Project, including the acquisition of the Convention Center Hotel Site, and paying the costs of issuance of the Original Notes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Resolution, as supplemented by Resolution R-2007-0584 (the "2007 Notes Resolution"), the County subsequently issued its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2007 in the aggregate principal amount of \$11,543,892.36 (the "2007 Notes") for the purpose of paying the Original Notes at their maturity and paying costs of issuance of the 2007 Notes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2007 Notes Resolution, the 2007 Notes were sold to Wachovia Bank, National Association (the "Bank") on April 30, 2007; and

WHEREAS, the 2007 Notes provide for the entire original principal amount of such 2007 Notes and unpaid interest accrued thereon to become due and payable on May 1, 2010 (the "2007 Notes Maturity Date"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the 2007 Notes Resolution, the County authorized the issuance of a Series of Bonds pursuant to the Bond Resolution in an aggregate principal amount at least sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2007 Notes when due, or upon the earlier redemption thereof, and for such other purposes as specified in subsequent proceedings of the County; and

WHEREAS, the County hereby determines that, pursuant to the authorization of the Bond Resolution and the 2007 Notes Resolution, it is in its best interests to issue its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010 (the "2010 Bonds") in an aggregate principal amount of not exceeding \$11,604,000 to provide for the payment, together with other legally available funds of the County, of the principal of unpaid interest accrued on the 2007 Notes on or before the 2007 Notes Maturity Date and to pay costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Bond Resolution provides that any Series of Bonds issued thereunder must meet the anti-dilution test set forth in Article III, Section 10(e) of the Bond Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the 2010 Bonds will meet the tests provided under said Article III, Section 10(e) of the Bond Resolution; and

WHEREAS, PNC Bank, National Association (the "Bank") has submitted to the County a proposal in connection with the 2010 Bonds, which proposal is in the form of a commitment letter (the "Commitment Letter") attached hereto as an exhibit; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, an authorized officer of the Bank, on behalf of the Bank, has delivered to the County a disclosure statement and truth-in-bonding statement in the form attached hereto as an exhibit; and

WHEREAS, based on the findings set forth in Section 6 hereof, the County Commission determines that it would be in the best interest of the County that 2010 Bonds be sold to the Bank; and

WHEREAS, based on the advice of the County's financial advisor, the County hereby determines it is in the best interest of the County to issue the 2010 Bonds for the purposes set forth herein, to accept the Commitment Letter and to award 2010 Bonds to the Bank.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. All capitalized terms used in this Resolution and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Bond Resolution, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. This Resolution is supplemental to the Bond Resolution.

SECTION 2. PURPOSE OF THE 2010 BONDS: FORM OF 2010 BONDS; APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF THE 2010 BONDS. The County hereby authorizes and determines at this time to issue not exceeding \$11,604,000 in aggregate principal amount of the 2010 Bonds as Taxable Bonds to pay, together with other legally available funds of the County, the outstanding principal of and unpaid and accrued interest on the 2007 Notes on or before the 2007 Notes Maturity Date and to pay costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds. The final principal amount of the 2010 Bonds, which shall not exceed the maximum principal amount authorized herein, shall be determined based on the actual date of delivery of the 2010 Bonds, and shall be equal to the amount needed to pay (i) the outstanding principal amount of the 2007 Notes on the delivery date of the 2010 Bonds; and (ii) costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds. Unpaid interest accrued on the 2007 Notes through the date of delivery of the 2010 Bonds shall be paid from legally available funds of the County. The application of the proceeds of the 2010 Bonds and other legally available funds of the County shall be set forth in a certificate of the Chair of the County Commission (or, in his absence, the Vice Chair or, in her absence, any other member of the County Commission) and the Debt Manager of the County delivered in connection with the closing of the 2010 Bonds (the "Closing Certificate"). A portion of the proceeds of the 2010 Bonds shall be deposited to a separate account in the Cost of Issuance Fund established pursuant to the Bond Resolution, which account is hereby created and designated as the "2010 Bonds Cost of Issuance Account," and the balance of such proceeds shall be applied on the date of issuance and delivery of the 2010 Bonds to pay all principal of due on the 2007 Notes, in full satisfaction thereof, all as shall be set forth in the Closing Certificate. Proceeds of the 2010 Bonds on deposit in the 2010 Bonds Cost of Issuance Account, together with investment earnings thereon, shall be applied as provided in the Bond Resolution.

The text of the 2010 Bonds shall be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A hereto. The Chair of the County Commission or, in his absence, the Vice Chair or, in her absence, any other member of the County Commission, is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk to attest, the 2010 Bonds, substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A with such modifications, insertions and deletions as may be approved, in consultation with the County Administrator, by the Chair of the County Commission or, in his absence, the Vice Chair or, in her absence, any other member of the County Commission, and to deliver the 2010 Bonds to the Bank.

The 2010 Bonds shall not be secured by the Debt Service Reserve Account of the Sinking Fund.

SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE 2010 BONDS. The 2010 Bonds shall be dated their date of delivery and shall mature on November 1, 2024 (the "Maturity Date"). The 2010 Bonds shall bear interest from their date of delivery at a rate per annum equal to 5.484%. In the event any payment of the principal of and interest on the 2010 Bonds is not paid when due, the unpaid amounts shall bear interest, from and after five (5) days after the due date, at a default rate equal to 3% over the Bank's "Base Rate" (as hereinafter defined). The term "Base Rate" shall mean the highest of (i) the Prime Rate (as hereinafter defined), (ii) the sum of the Federal Funds Open Rate (as hereinafter defined) plus fifty (50) basis points (0.50%), and (iii) the sum of the Daily LIBOR Rate (as hereinafter defined) plus one hundred (100) basis points (1.0%), so long as a Daily LIBOR Rate is offered, ascertainable and not unlawful. For purposes of the foregoing, the following terms be defined as follows:

"Daily LIBOR Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum determined by the Bank by dividing (x) the Published Rate (as hereinafter defined) by (y) a number equal to 1.00 minus the LIBOR Reserve Percentage (as hereinafter defined).

"Federal Funds Open Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum (based on a year of 360 days and actual days elapsed) which is the daily federal funds open rate as quoted by ICAP North America, Inc. (or any successor) as set forth on the Bloomberg Screen BTMM for that day opposite the caption "OPEN" (or on such other substitute Bloomberg Screen that displays such rate), or as set forth on such other recognized electronic source used for the purpose of displaying such rate as selected by the Bank (an "Alternate Source") (or if such rate for such day does not appear on the Bloomberg Screen BTMM (or any substitute screen) or on any Alternate Source, or if there shall at any time, for any reason, no longer exist a Bloomberg Screen BTMM (or any substitute screen) or any Alternate Source, a comparable replacement rate determined by the Bank at such time (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error); provided however, that if such day is not a Business Day, the

Federal Funds Open Rate for such day shall be the "open" rate on the immediately preceding Business Day. The rate of interest charged shall be adjusted as of each Business Day based on changes in the Federal Funds Open Rate without notice to the Borrower.

"LIBOR Reserve Percentage" shall mean	
---------------------------------------	--

"Prime Rate" shall mean the rate publicly announced by the Bank from time to time as its prime rate. The Prime Rate is determined from time to time by the Bank as a means of pricing some loans to its borrowers. The Prime Rate is not tied to any external rate of interest or index, and does not necessarily reflect the lowest rate of interest actually charged by the Bank to any particular class or category of customers.

"Published	Rate"	shall	mean	_

Interest on the outstanding principal balance of the 2010 Bonds shall be payable on each May 1 and November 1 until the Maturity Date or earlier redemption thereof, commencing November 1, 2010. Principal on the 2010 Bonds shall be payable annually on each November 1 until the Maturity Date or earlier redemption thereof, commencing November 1, 2010. The 2010 Bonds shall be issued in Authorized Denominations equal to the Outstanding principal amounts of the 2010 Bonds from time to time.

SECTION 4. REDEMPTION PROVISIONS. The 2010 Bonds shall be redeemable in whole or in part prior to the Maturity Date, at any time on or after November 1, 2019, without penalty or premium, at a redemption price equal to the par amount of the 2010 Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued to the redemption date. Notice of such redemption shall be sent to the Bank at least ten (10) Business Days prior to the date of redemption. Notwithstanding any provision of the Bond Resolution to the contrary, no other notice of redemption of the 2010 Bonds is required.

SECTION 5. SALE; COMMITMENT LETTER. The County Commission hereby finds, pursuant to Section 218.385(1)(a) that based on present market conditions, the volatility of interest rates and the recommendation of the County's financial advisor, after reviewing proposals submitted pursuant to a bid process, it would be in the best interest of the County that the 2010 Bonds be sold to the Bank. The Commitment Letter submitted to this meeting and attached hereto as Exhibit B is hereby approved and accepted. The 2010 Bonds are hereby sold to the Bank at a purchase price equal to the initial principal amount of the 2010 Bonds as determined in accordance herewith. The Chair of the County Commission or, in his absence, the Vice Chair or, in her absence, any other member of the County Commission, is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk to attest, the Commitment Letter and to deliver the 2010 Bonds to the Bank and to obtain the 2007 Notes from the Bank, marked cancelled. As a condition to the delivery

of the 2010 Bonds to the Bank, the Bank shall deliver to the County an investor letter substantially in the form of Exhibit C hereto.

SECTION 6. PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR. Notwithstanding any provision of the Bond Resolution to the contrary, the County is hereby appointed as Paying Agent and Registrar for the 2010 Bonds.

SECTION 7. INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED; AMENDMENTS. While the 2010 Bonds are Outstanding and the Bank is the Owner thereof: (a) the County shall furnish to the Bank the same documents as it is required to furnish to a Credit Facility Issuer pursuant to Article III, Section 10 (h) of the Bond Resolution in the same time frame as required by that section, and (b) the County shall not amend any provision of the Bond Resolution or this Resolution affecting the 2010 Bonds without the prior written consent of the Bank.

SECTION 8. DISCLOSURE STATEMENT. The County does hereby find that the Bank has submitted a disclosure statement and truth-in-bonding statement pursuant to Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

SECTION 9. FURTHER AUTHORIZATIONS. The Chair and Vice Chair of the County Commission, any other member of the Board, the Clerk or any Deputy Clerk, the County Administrator and the Debt Manager, and any other authorized official of the County, be, and each of them is hereby, authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all documents and instruments, and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions contemplated by the Bond Resolution and this Resolution.

SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

	The	foreg	oing	Resc	olution	was	O	ffere	d	by	Comn	nissio	ner
	,	who	moved	l its	adopti	on.	The	mo	tion	was	secor	nded	by
Commission	er			_, and	d upon	being	put	to	a vo	te, th	e vote	was	as
follows:													
					son, Ch		ماد ما			-			
			er Jeff k		larcus,	vice C	naır			_			
			er Shell							_			
					Abrams					-			
			er Jess er Prisc		ıntamar	ia				-			
	Commi	13310116	51 F115C	ilia A.	i ayıdı					-			
	The Cl	hair th	nereupo	n dec	ared t	he Res	soluti	on c	duly	passe	ed and	adop	ited
this 20th day	of April	, 2010).										
					PALM BOARD								ITS
				,	SHARO	NR.B	OCK	, CL	.ERK	(& C(OMPTR	OLLE	ΞR
				E	Зу:								
					Зу:			Dep	uty (Clerk			
APPROVED			1 AND										
Ву:													
Assis	stant Co	unty A	Attorney	'									

EXHIBIT A

FORM OF 2010 BONDS

THIS OBLIGATION MAY BE TRANSFERRED ONLY WITH THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE COUNTY AS DESCRIBED HEREIN.

No. R-1

\$11,604,000

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF FLORIDA PALM BEACH COUNTY TAXABLE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS (CONVENTION CENTER HOTEL PROJECT), SERIES 2010

Interest Rate 5.484%

Maturity Date
November 1, 2024

Dated Date April 28, 2010

Registered Owner: PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

Principal Amount: ELEVEN MILLION SIX HUNDRED AND FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS (\$11,604,000)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County"), for value received, hereby promises to pay, solely from the Pledged Revenues (hereinafter defined) to the Registered Owner or registered assigns on the Maturity Date specified above (or earlier redemption date as herein provided) the Principal Amount stated hereon, and to pay, solely from the Pledged Revenues, interest on the Principal Amount from the date hereof to the Maturity Date or earlier redemption date at the Interest Rate per annum set forth above, subject to adjustment as herein provided. The Principal Amount and accrued interest thereon is payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America, which, on the date of payment thereof, shall be legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Resolution (hereinafter defined). Promptly following the payment of the principal of this Bond, the Registered Owner shall provide the County with evidence of the cancellation hereof. The County is serving as the initial Paying Agent and Registrar for this Bond. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Resolution.

Interest on this Bond shall be calculated on the basis of a 360 day year consisting of twelve 30 day months and shall be payable on each November 1 and

May 1 (each, an "Interest Payment Date") through the Maturity Date or earlier redemption date hereof, commencing on November 1, 2010. Principal on this Bond shall be payable annually, commencing November 1, 2010, in accordance with the amortization schedule attached hereto.

In the event any payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond is not paid when due, the unpaid amounts shall bear interest, from and after five (5) days after the due date, at a default rate equal to 3% over the initial Registered Owner's "Base Rate" (as hereinafter defined). The term "Base Rate" shall mean the highest of (i) the Prime Rate (as hereinafter defined), (ii) the sum of the Federal Funds Open Rate (as hereinafter defined) plus fifty (50) basis points (0.50%), and (iii) the sum of the Daily LIBOR Rate (as hereinafter defined) plus one hundred (100) basis points (1.0%), so long as a Daily LIBOR Rate is offered, ascertainable and not unlawful. For purposes of the foregoing, the following terms be defined as follows:

"Daily LIBOR Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum determined by the Bank by dividing (x) the Published Rate (as hereinafter defined) by (y) a number equal to 1.00 minus the LIBOR Reserve Percentage (as hereinafter defined).

"Federal Funds Open Rate" shall mean, for any day, the rate per annum (based on a year of 360 days and actual days elapsed) which is the daily federal funds open rate as quoted by ICAP North America, Inc. (or any successor) as set forth on the Bloomberg Screen BTMM for that day opposite the caption "OPEN" (or on such other substitute Bloomberg Screen that displays such rate), or as set forth on such other recognized electronic source used for the purpose of displaying such rate as selected by the Bank (an "Alternate Source") (or if such rate for such day does not appear on the Bloomberg Screen BTMM (or any substitute screen) or on any Alternate Source, or if there shall at any time, for any reason, no longer exist a Bloomberg Screen BTMM (or any substitute screen) or any Alternate Source, a comparable replacement rate determined by the Bank at such time (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error); provided however, that if such day is not a Business Day, the Federal Funds Open Rate for such day shall be the "open" rate on the immediately preceding Business Day. The rate of interest charged shall be adjusted as of each Business Day based on changes in the Federal Funds Open Rate without notice to the Borrower.

"LIBOR Reserve Percentage" shall mean	centage" shall mean .
---------------------------------------	-----------------------

"Prime Rate" shall mean the rate publicly announced by the Bank from time to time as its prime rate. The Prime Rate is determined from time to time by the Bank as a means of pricing some loans to its borrowers. The Prime Rate is not tied to any external rate of interest or index, and does not necessarily reflect the lowest rate of interest actually charged by the Bank to any particular class or category of customers.

Published Rate Shall mean	ed Rate" shall mean
---------------------------	---------------------

This Bond shall be redeemable in whole or in part prior to the Maturity Date, at any time on or after November 1, 2019, without penalty or premium, at a redemption price equal to the par amount of the 2010 Bonds to be redeemed, together with interest accrued to the redemption date, upon at least ten Business Days prior written notice to the Registered Owner of this Bond.

This Bond represents all of an authorized issue of bonds of the County designated as its Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010 issued under the authority of and in full compliance with the Constitution, the County Charter, as amended and supplemented, and laws of the State of Florida, including particularly Chapters 125 and 166, Florida Statutes and other applicable provisions of law, and a resolution duly adopted by the Board on April 5, 2005, as supplemented by a resolution duly adopted by the Board on April 20, 2010 (collectively, the "Resolution"), is issued for the purposes set forth in the Resolution, and is subject to all the terms and conditions of the Resolution. This Bond is issued as a Taxable Bond under the Resolution and is issuable only as a registered bond without coupons in Authorized Denominations equal to the Outstanding principal amount of this Bond from time to time.

This Bond is a special obligation of the County and is payable solely in the manner and to the extent set forth in the Resolution. The County has pledged the Pledged Revenues (as defined below) for the payment of the principal of and interest on this Bond in accordance with the terms and the provisions of the Resolution. This Bond shall not be or constitute a general obligation of the County within the meaning of the Constitution of the State of Florida but shall be payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and a pledge of the Pledged Revenues, in the manner and to the extent provided in the Resolution. No Owner shall ever have the right to compel the exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of the County or taxation in any form on any real or personal property to pay this Bond or the interest thereon, nor shall any Owner be entitled to payment of such principal or interest from any other funds of the County other than as provided in the Resolution. Furthermore, no Owner shall ever have a lien on the Project or any other real or personal property of the County, except for the Pledged Revenues, in the manner and to the extent provided in the Resolution.

Until the Bonds (as defined in the Resolution to mean all Series of Bonds and bond anticipation notes issued to finance or refinance the Project) are paid or deemed paid pursuant to the provisions of the Resolution, the County covenants to appropriate in its annual budget in each Fiscal Year, by amendment if necessary, Non-Ad Valorem Revenues in amounts sufficient to pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, as the same become due (whether by redemption, at maturity or otherwise), and, if applicable, to restore any deficiency in the

Debt Service Reserve Account created and established under the Resolution for the Bonds. This Bond is not secured by the Debt Service Reserve Account.

The Resolution provides that notwithstanding the foregoing covenant of the County, the County does not covenant to maintain any services or programs, now provided or maintained by the County, which generate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues other than such services or programs which are essential public purposes affecting the health, welfare and safety of the inhabitants of the County. The Resolution further provides that to the extent that the County is in compliance with the foregoing covenant and Section 10(e) of Article III of the Resolution, the obligations of the County contained in the Resolution shall not be construed as a limitation on the ability of the County to pledge or covenant with respect to the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues for other indebtedness or other legally permissible purposes.

Such covenant to budget and appropriate Non-Ad Valorem Revenues is not a pledge by the County of such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues and is subject in all respects to the payment of obligations secured by a pledge of such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues heretofore or hereinafter entered into, including the payment of debt service on bonds or other obligations. Such covenant to budget and appropriate is subject to the provisions of Section 129.07, Florida Statutes, which makes it unlawful for the County to expend moneys not appropriated and in excess of the County's current budgeted revenues. Such covenant does not require the County to levy and collect any particular source of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues nor to maintain or increase any regulatory fees or user charges with respect to any particular source of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues. Such covenant does not give the Paying Agent a prior claim on such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues as opposed to claims of general creditors of the County until such time as a deposit of such Non-Ad Valorem Revenues is made into the Sinking Fund or other fund created under the Resolution for the Bonds.

"Pledged Revenues" means: (i) moneys budgeted and appropriated by the County, and deposited into the Sinking Fund or any other Fund established under the Resolution, from Non-Ad Valorem Revenues (until deposited into the Sinking fund in the manner and at the time specified in the Resolution such moneys do not constitute Pledged Revenues); (ii) any proceeds of Bonds originally deposited with the County and all moneys deposited and held from time to time by the County in the funds (other than the Rebate Fund and Cost of Issuance Fund) and accounts established pursuant to the Resolution; (iii) investment income received by the County in the funds (other than the Rebate Fund and Cost of Issuance Fund) and accounts established pursuant to the Resolution; and (iv) any other moneys received by the Paying Agent in connection with repayment of the Bonds.

"Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means legally available revenues of the County derived from any source whatever other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property, which are legally available for payment by the County of Debt Service on the Bonds, including, after the payment from the sources of Non-Ad Valorem Revenues pledged thereto of the principal of and interest on any obligations of the

County hereafter issued which have a prior pledge on any source of the Non-Ad Valorem Revenues; provided however that for the purpose of the anti-dilution test set forth in of the Resolution, "Non-Ad Valorem Revenues" means all legally available revenues of the County derived from any source whatever other than ad valorem taxation on real and personal property which are legally available for payment by the County of Non-Self-Supporting Debt.

The original Registered Owner, and each successive Registered Owner of this Bond shall be conclusively deemed to have agreed and consented to the terms and conditions of the Resolution and this Bond, including the following:

- (1) The County, as Registrar, shall maintain the books of the County for the registration of Bonds as provided in the Resolution. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Resolution, the initial Registered Owner may not participate the obligations evidenced hereby. Further, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Resolution, this Bond may only be transferred or assigned in whole, but not in part, subject to the prior written consent of the County, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, provided that the proposed transferee or assignee delivers to the County an investment certificate in form and substance identical to that delivered to the County by the initial Registered Owner hereof.
- (2) The County, directly and in its capacity as Paying Agent and Registrar, shall deem and treat the person in whose name this Bond shall be registered upon the books kept by the Registrar as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal of and interest on such Bond as the same becomes due, and for all other purposes. All such payments so made to any such Registered Owner or upon his order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and the County, directly and in its capacity as Paying Agent and Registrar, shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.
- (3) If less than all of this Bond is redeemed or defeased, the County shall execute and the County, as Registrar, shall authenticate and deliver, upon the surrender of this Bond, without charge to the Bondholder, for the unpaid balance of the principal amount of this Bond so surrendered, a registered Bond in the appropriate Authorized Denomination and interest rate.

THE COUNTY, BY EXECUTION HEREOF, AND THE REGISTERED OWNER, BY ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, MUTUALLY AND WILLINGLY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY AND ALL CLAIMS MADE BETWEEN THEM WHETHER NOW EXISTING OR ARISING IN THE FUTURE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, AND INTERVENOR'S CLAIMS WHETHER ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THE NEGOTIATION, EXECUTION, AND PERFORMANCE OF THE TRANSACTIONS TO WHICH THIS BOND RELATES.

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, to happen, and to the performed, precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form and time as required by the laws and Constitution of the State of Florida applicable thereto, and that the issuance of this Bond is in full compliance with all constitutional or statutory limitations or provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Palm Beach County, Florida, has issued this Bond and has caused the same to be executed by the manual signature of its Chair and the official seal of the County to be affixed hereto or lithographed or imprinted or reproduced hereon, and attested by the manual signature of the Chief Deputy Clerk, all as of the Dated Date.

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:						
•	Chair	of	the	Board	of	County
	Comm	issic	ners			•

ATTEST:

Chief Deputy Clerk of the Circuit Court and Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County, Florida

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

EXHIBIT B

COMMITMENT LETTER

EXHIBIT C

INVESTOR LETTER

Board of County Commissioners Palm Beach County, Florida West Palm Beach, Florida

Re: \$11,604,000 Palm Beach County, Florida, Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010 (the "2010 Bonds")

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter is being provided in connection with the purchase and exchange of the above-referenced 2010 Bonds which were delivered to us by Palm Beach County, Florida (the "County") as of the date hereof.

- 1. We are engaged in the business of investing in securities similar to the 2010 Bonds or the business of entering into loan transactions evidenced by securities similar to the 2010 Bonds.
- 2. We are purchasing the 2010 Bonds from the County for our own account (or those of our banking affiliates) for investment purposes and not for resale; provided, however, that the 2010 Bonds may be transferred or assigned in whole, but not in part, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the 2010 Bonds.
- 3. We are an "accredited investor" as that term is defined in Regulation D as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "1933 Act"), and we have sufficiently knowledge and experience in financial and business matters, including the purchase and ownership of taxable and tax-exempt obligations, to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of our investment in the 2010 Bonds.
- 4. We are able to bear the economic risk of our investment in the 2010 Bonds.
- 5. We acknowledge that the 2010 Bonds do not represent a general obligation of the County, the State of Florida or any political subdivision thereof and are not payable from taxes or any moneys provided by or to the County, other than those described in the 2010 Bonds, and we further acknowledge that no covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement contained in any documents related to the issuance of the 2010

Bonds is or shall be deemed to be a covenant, agreement or obligation of any present or future board member, officer or employee of the County in his or her individual capacity.

- 6. We acknowledge and agree that the 2010 Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the 1933 Act or the securities or Blue Sky laws of any state and are not listed on any stock or securities exchange.
- 7. We understand that no offering, statement, prospectus, offering circular, official statement or other disclosure document containing material information with respect to the County and the 2010 Bonds is being or has been prepared, and that, with due diligence, we have made our own inquiry and analysis with respect to the County, the 2010 Bonds and the security therefor.
- 8. We have received all financial and other information regarding the 2010 Bonds that we have requested and which we consider relevant or necessary to make an informed decision to invest in the 2010 Bonds. We have made our own inquiry into the creditworthiness of the 2010 Bonds and the County, we have received all the information that we have requested from the County or any agents or representatives thereof, and we have been afforded a reasonable opportunity to ask questions about the terms and conditions of the offering of the 2010 Bonds and the security therefor, and the County, and have received, to the best of our knowledge, complete and satisfactory answers to all such questions.

Dated as of the 28th day of April, 2010.

Yours very tru	uly,		
PNC Bank, Purchaser	National	Association,	а
By:			
Title: Vice Pr	esident		

EXHIBIT D

DISCLOSURE AND TRUTH IN BONDING STATEMENT

Board of County Commissioners Palm Beach County, Florida West Palm Beach, Florida

Re: \$11,604,000 Palm Beach County, Florida, Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bonds (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2010

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In connection with the proposed issuance of the above-captioned bonds (the "2010 Bonds"), PNC Bank, National Association (the "Bank") has agreed to purchase the 2010 Bonds.

The purpose of this letter is to furnish pursuant to the provisions of Sections 218.385(2) and (6), Florida Statutes, as amended, certain information in respect to the arrangement contemplated for the placement and sale of the 2010 Bonds as follows:

(a) An itemized list setting forth the nature and estimated amounts of expenses to be incurred by the Bank in connection with the issuance of the 2010 Bonds is set forth below:

Bryant Miller & Olive P.A., Bank's Counsel: \$7,500

None of such fees and expenses are being charged to the County as part of the underwriting spread, if any, set forth in paragraph (c) below.

- (b) No "finder" as that term is defined in Section 218.386, Florida Statutes, as amended, has entered into an understanding with the Bank, or to the knowledge of the Bank, with the County, for any paid or promised compensation or valuable consideration, directly or indirectly, expressly or implied, to act solely as an intermediary between the County and the Bank or to exercise or attempt to exercise any influence to effect any transaction in the purchase of the 2010 Bonds.
 - (c) The underwriting spread to be paid by the County will be:

\$0.00

- (d) No other fee, bonus or other compensation is estimated to be paid by the Bank in connection with the issuance of the 2010 Bonds to any person not regularly employed or retained by the Bank (including any "finder," as defined in Section 281.386(1)(a), Florida Statutes, as amended), except as specifically enumerated as expenses to be incurred and paid by the Bank as set forth in paragraph (a) above.
- (e) Truth-in-Bonding Statement The County is proposing to issue the 2010 Bonds to pay, together with other legally available funds of the County, the principal of and accrued and unpaid interest due on the County's outstanding \$11,543,892.36 Taxable Public Improvement Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (Convention Center Hotel Project), Series 2007 (the "2007 Notes") and pay costs of issuance of the 2010 Bonds. The 2010 Bonds are expected to be repaid at or prior to maturity on November 1, 2024 (the "Maturity Date"). The total interest paid over the life of the 2010 Bonds is estimated to be \$5,272,936.94.

The source of repayment or security for the 2010 Bonds is limited solely to the Pledged Revenues as such term is defined in the 2010 Bonds. Assuming a par amount of \$11,604,000, the authorization of this debt or obligation will result in approximately \$1,124,736 of Pledged Revenues not being available to the County to finance other projects of the County each year for the approximately fifteen-year period from the date of issuance of the 2010 Bonds to the Maturity Date.

(f) The name and address of the Bank is set forth below:

PNC Bank, National Association 1600 Market Street, 22nd Floor Philadelphia, PA 19103

We understand that the County does not require any further disclosure from the Bank, pursuant to Section 218.385(6), Florida Statutes, as amended.

Dated as of this 20th day of April, 2010.

Yours very truly,

PNC Bank, National Association, as Purchaser

Ву: _				
Title:	Vice	President		